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Trustees' Report

The trustees present their annual reporttotether with the financial statements and audito/s report ofthe charitable company
for the year ended 31 Autust 2024. The annual report serves the purposes of both a trustees' report, and a directors' report
under company law.

The academy trust operates an academy for pupils aged 4 to 11 serving a c2tchment area in central Kendal. lt has a pupil
capaclty of42O and had a roll of 278 in the school census on 16 May 2024.

Structure, Governance and Management

C.onstltution
The academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charhable company's memorandum and
articles of association are the primary governing documents ofthe academy trust. The trustees of Stramongate School are also
the directoB ofthe charitable company for the purposes ofcompany law. The charitable company operates as Stramongate
school.

Details of the trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are included in the Reference
and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members' Uabillty
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event of it
being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as may be
required, not exceeding €10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

Trustee's lndemnldes
The academy trust, through its Articles, has indemnified its trustees to the fullest extent permissible by law. During the period
the academy trust also purchased and maintained liability insurance for its trustees (referred to as Governo6' Liability cover
under the DfE Risk Protection Arrangement).

Method of Recruitment and Appointmetrt or Electlon of Trustees
The Trustees are Directo6 of the charitable company for the purposes ofthe Companies Act 1985 and Trustees for the purpose
of charity leSislation. The management ofthe academv trust is the responsibility of the Trustee Board under the terms of the
Articles of tusociation.

Contrary to the Articles of fusociation, The Academy Trust Handbook states that any newly appointed senior executive leader
can only be a trustee ifthe members decide to appoint them as such, the senior executive leader agrees and the trusfs articles
permit it. The Handbook also states that it was the Department for Education's strong preference for no other employees to
serve as trustees, nor for trustees to occupy staff establishment roles on an unpaid voluntary basis, in order to retain clear lines
of accountability. The Trust Board, considering this change in guidance, decided to restructure the Trusfs governance
structure. Employees of Stramongate School no longer serve as trusteet ahhough up to four staff representatives are
appointed as governors and invited to contribute to meetings ofthe Board of Trustees. This is reflected in the structure
outlined on paSe 1.

Trustees are recruited by th€ Board ofTrustees, with regard to skill set needed by the Board.

The Trust was requested by the DfE to adopt a new ftrndint agreement as a condition ofthe appointment ofan lnterim chief
Financial officer in May 2023. The new Funding Agreement, using the latest DfE format, was completed in February 2024.
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Trustees' Report (continued)

Policies and Procedures Adopted foithe lnductlon and Tralning of Trune€s.
All new trustees have an induction meetin& usually with the Chair of Trustees, Clerk to the Governors and Headteacher, with
the full training and induction process dependint on their existing experience.

Details oftrustee trainint courses are made available to all trustees; the academy trust subscribes to the National Governance
Association and additional training courses are ayailable locally, through both the LocalAuthority and third-party providers. ln-
house training occurs annually; the content of such training is determined by any areas of weakness identified by an annual
skills audit.

Trustees have access to policies, improvement plans, minutes and other relevant documentation that they need to undertake

their role. For a minimum oftheir first twelve months, new trustees are also encouraged to attend all meetings, of all
committees, to allow them to develop a full understanding of the Board of Trustee's working practices. The Chair of Trustees

and the Chairs of committees are responsible for supporting new Trustees on the work ofeach separate committee.

O.tanisational Structure
The academy trust's management structure consists ofthree levels: Members, Board ofTrustees and the Senior Leadership

Team.

The Members ensure that the academy trust meets with its stated aims and expected standards, appoint the external auditors

and ensure that the audited accounts are lodged with Companies House annually.

The Board of Trustees is responsible for setting general policy, reviewing and adoptint an annual School Development Plan and

budget, monitoring the performance ofthe academy trust by use of budgets and key performance data and making major,

strategic decisions about the direction ofthe academy trust, capital expenditure and senior staff appointments.

The Senior Leadership Team manages the day-today runninB ofthe business of the academy trust, implementing the policies

laid down by the Board ofTrustees and reportint back to them.

The Headteacher is appointed as the Accountint Officer.

Arrantements for settint pay and remunetadon of kev management pelsonnel
The Headteache/s pay scale has been set by reference to the school Teachers' Pay and conditions and the salary paid is set in

line with the pay scales published by the School Teachers' Review Body. Headteacher pay and performance is reviewed

annually by an external consultant who, in turn, advises and makes recommendations to the Goveming Eoard Pay and

Performance Management commiftee retarding performance targets and pay progression.

Senior Leadership pay and performance is managed by the Headteacher, under advice from specialist advisors, Capita HR, using

Single Status Pay and Performance guidelines and SchoolTeache6 Pay and Conditions guidelines, as appropriate. Pay and

progression is recommended by the Headteacher and approved by the Board Pay and Performance Committee.

The Board ofTrustees benchmark spend on management personnelto comparable schools usinB the DfE's benchmarking tools.

Trade union facility time
The Academy has no relevant union officials.
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Trustees' Report (continuedl

Related parties and other connected charities and oitanisatlons
No related parties control nor hold significant influence over the decisions or operations of the academy trust. The academy

trust has no sponsors.

The Headteacher and one trustee ofStramontate School act as two out of three trustees of Stramongate Nursery a Charitable
lncorporated Organisation, which leases premises from Stramongate School.

The lease between Stramongate School and Stramongate Nursery has received approval ftom the Secretary of State for
Education and been reported as a related party transaction to the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA).

Stramontate Nursery provides nursery education to children aged between 2 and 4 years old. Until 31 May 2023, it also
provided wraparound care, in the form of an aftercchool club, for pupils of Stramongate School. From 1 June 2023, the
operation of the afterschool club was transferred to Stramontate School and three members of staff were transferred under
the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) regulations.

The Nursery pays rent and donates its profits to Stramongate School. During the year to 31 August 2024, it also purchased
meals and other supplies and services from the School. lncome received from Stramongate Nursery during the year to 31
August 2024 comprised €5,784 in rental payments, €4528 in meals purchases and a small amount for the provision ofother
services. The profit share transferred to the academy in the year to 31 August 2024 was €2O,OOO.

Obiectives and Activities

Obiects and Alms
The principle obiest and activity ofthe charitable company is the operation ofStramongate School, to provide education for
pupils aged 4 to 11.

Obrectves, SEdtegies and AEdtdties
The Stramongate school motto of "be klnd, work hard and discove/' is underlined by the core values of respect, perseverance,
self-belief, pride and achievement.

The main obiectives ofthe academy trust are to

Ensure well-being is at our core, enabling children and staff to thrive;
Provide a safe, balanced and purposeful curriculum with opportunities for all;
Embrace diversity and be an inclusi\re community;
Celebrate our position in the heart of Kendal;
Continue to develop the school, providing an excellent learning environment;
Provide value for money; and
Operate adhering to the highen standards of integrity, probity and openness.

The strateties and activities implemented to enable the academy trust to achieve these objectives, are;

. The use of high-quality teaching processes, which are transparent and inform all subsequent actions;

. The secure use of data and trackin& to measure progress and inform actions and interventions;

. Monitoring and management of school attendance;

. Offerint a variety of inclusive extra{unicular opportunities;

. Use of extemal, independent third-party experts to validate/challenge the trust's own assessment of key performance
indicators; and

' Use of benchmarking the trusfs performance against those nationally and against 'simila/ schools in terms of a range of. key areas including Standards, Structure and Finance.



Stramongate School
Page 5

Trustees' Report (continuedI

The academy trust applies the following criteria to measure its success, Ensuring that:

Pupils are well cared for and know how to manage risks and make good decisions for their own and others, well-being;
Pupil cohort attainment in the Early Years, Year 1 Phonics, Year 4 Multiplication Check and |(sl & K52 assessments are at
least in line with national averages;
Pupil Progress is at least in line with Analyse School Performance (ASP) averages and Fischer FamilyTrust (FFD estimates;
Positive outcomes from Ofsted inspections are gained; and
Feedback on the Trust's effectiveness is sought from stakeholders, both informally and through bi-annual attitudinal
surveys generated, collated and benchmarked against nation datasets via an independent third party.

The school's s-year vision is to

Have strong academic outcomes, further closing the attainment gap;
Have a well-balanced, rich and evolving curriculum where children's voices and opinions are heard;
Have happy, healthy, ambitious children;
Further involve parents and carers in their child's education;
Support our staff and provide development opportunities;
lncrease our school roll;
Have invested in outdoor and indoor learning spaces.

The strategies and activities implemented to enable the academy trust to achieve this vision, were to

Hqve strong ocademic outcomes, lurther closing the oftoinment gop

Termly data is accurate and leads to improving outcomes.
Raise attainment and accelerate progress of disadvantaged and lower attaining pupils by holding termly pupil progress

meetints, attended by the lnclusion manager and Headteacher, to ensure the effectiveness of intervention

Raise attainment and accelerate progress of disadvantaged and lower attaining pupils by holding termly pupil progress

meetintt attended by the lnclusion manager and Headteacher, to ensure the effectiveness of intervention groups;

Embedd Little Wandle Phonics across the school and catch up provision is etfective
lntroduce and embed oracy across subiects to raise writing standards across the school.

Hove o well-bolonced, ich ond evolving curriculum whete childten's voices ond opinions orc heord

Self evaluation across the school is honest and shared,
Maximum use is made of teaching time.
Further embed high quality handwriting and presentation across the school.
Support and develop subiect leaders to lead effectively.
Further develop the Pupils' Voice.
Engage with Kendal Education and Conservation Partnership initiative.

Hove hoppy, heolthy, ombitious children

Ensure that pupils feel secure and where they may present poor behaviour they experience consistent support and

consequences from all staff;

Ensure that PHSE and social and emotional aspects of learning are woven into lessons;

New class organisation in Rec +KS1 works effectively.

Further involve porcnts ond corers in their child's educotion

Hold curriculum information evenings;

Parental communications improved using MS SWAY

Embed parentalaccess to school services
lmprove school attendance with a target of 96% attendance
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Trustees' Report (continued)

Support our stolf ond provide development oppottunities

Ensure that performance management aligns with the School Development Plan, evaluated in the School Evaluation Form;
Offer relevant staff meetings closely aligned with staff development needs, the School Development Plan and School

Evaluation Form;

Ensure that stafftraining satisfies Heahh and Safety requirements and is responsive to the needs of staff including those
looking to develop their career.

lncrcose our school toll

Continue to work with Stramongate Nursery to offer opportunities forjoint collaboration;
Make full use of social media, newsletters and face to face look arounds to promote the school positively.

Explore lutwe school orgonisdtion by looking into the pro's/cons of joining o multi dcodemy trust

Move forward with full investigation of potential MultiAcademy Trusts to join
Work with Trustees to look in depth at which would be the best MAT for the School to ioin
Meet MAT reps ftom different MATS
Consult with staff/parents to include planned benefits.

To ensure thot:

. Children make the speakint and Listening and Phonics Phase milestones, with at least 86% ofYear 1 pupils meeting the
Phonics Screening Score target in June 2023, in line with national averages;

. An increased number of children are working at Age Related Expectations, with at least 75% of pupils in Key Stage I and
85% of children in (ey stage 2 meeting expectations with an aim of 9096 of Key Stage 2 children meeting age related
expectations by 2030;

. A reduction in the 8ap in terms of rate of progress or achievement between non-SEND disadvantaged groups and others,
with at least 65% of Year 2 pupils eligible for Pupil Premium tunding and 75% ofYear 6 pupils eligible for Pupil Premium
firnding working at Age Related Expectations;

. lmprovements in the outcome ofthe Year 4 Multiplication Check, with at least 75% achieving the target grade;

. Children demonstrate, through their social interactions, attitudes to learning and actions, that they can confidently take on
new challenges; exploring boundaries, understanding and ideas to progressively build leadership, organisation, resilience,
initiative and communication skills;

. Attendance levels exceed 96% for all children and School persistent absence levels are below the national average;

. lncreased Reception intake numbers, with 10O% of Stramongate Nursery pre.schooleE moving into stramongate Reception
in Sept 2023.

Details as to the academy trust's performance against these obiectives is outlined later in the trustees report.

Public Benefit
The trustees confirm that they have complied with their duties under Section 4 of the Charities Act 2011 to have due regard to
the guidance on public benefit provided by the Charity Commission in exerclsing their powers and duties. ln setting our
obiectives and planning our activitiet the trustees have carefulV considered the Charity Commission's general guidance on
public benefit. The academy trust provides educational services to children in the local area.
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Trustees' Report (continuedl

StrateBic Report

Achievements and Performance
The academy trusfs main strategic objective is to raise standards of achievement and protress through an unrelenting focus on
continuous improvement in all aspects of the organisation. The core purpose ofthe academy trust is teaching and learning and

therefore its key focus is on the progress made and standards achieved by its pupils.

Key Performance lndicators
Ofited inspealons
The Academy trusts last inspection was 28th and 29th January 2020. The outcome was that Stramongate continues to be a
good school. Since that date, school and the senior team have been workint on the improvement areas and now focusing on

readiness for the next Ofsted inspection.

Exomlnotion resutts
Results for the 2023-24 academic year were pleasin& showing an improving trend on a number of measures, as indicated

below. To note, this is internaldata as we await official DIE performance data.

Data from !uly Phonic3

2024 ScaaeninE JunG

wrslo.t.
Good levelof
development (first 12
ELG) 69%
ReadinB - 81%
WritinB - 69%
Maths 81%

2024
84% at pass mark of
32 or above.
W +F = 79.6%
National 80.2%

Y2 re takers 87.5%
(1 child not passed

- EHCP)

Graatca
DGpth

Stsnd!.d

t9% l%l 11% l%l 79%

W +F =64.8%
National=67.7%

The Governing Board, senior Leadership Team and class teachers are aware ofthe significant continuing impact COVID and the
associated school closures and disruption to formal education had on pupil's wellbein& development and education, the

outcomes of which are still being seen, particularly in KSl and now moving into KS2. The school is working hard with parents

and carers to sensitively support children and has developed strateties to address identified gaps in learning, including

additional investment in smallgroup support using the Recovery Premium and National Tutoring trants as well as the purchase

of a new Little Wandle phonics scheme, funded from the trust's reserves. However, it is expected that the impact on the results

achieved by some pupils will be seen for several years.

Year 4 Multiplication Check June 2024 results

Stramongate % with full marks (25125): 21023 - t|y" 2c,24 - zfJPA 
I

Mean averate scores (2024):

National (estimated) - 21 Stramontate - 21

oPTIONAI End ot KSI Tcrchcr A.tcasmcnt
DgE

RGrdlnt Wrlting Mlth!

76%Expcct.d
st ndlrd
or above

76% 65%
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XS2 Test Data June 2024

Patc 9

ul 20 4

GD is Greater Depth

To ensure that standards are continually raised, the academy trust, Governing Board and Senior Leadership Team operate a
robust quality assurance calendar which monitors the quality of teaching and leaming and undertake rigorous reviews of
attainment. Utilising Analyse School Performance (ASP) and Fischer Family Trust (FFT) data, rates of pupil progress are
anaVsed, paying particular regard to achievement on-€ntry and levels of progress secured against those achieved nationally
and locally.

Pupil Artcndaace Mo
Pupil attendance for the yearto 31 August 2024 was 94.6%, which is below the academy trusfs tar8et of 96% but equals the
national primary attendance figure of 94.3% (Source FFTAspire 10 OOO+ schools. Persistent absence rates (less than 9O%) was
125%

The Governing Board review attendance at least half termly and the Trusfs lnclusion Manager works closely with the families
of pupils with low attendance to help them overcome any obstacles to attending school regularly. We are engaging with the
Local Authority attendance offi cer.

tntoke Doto
33 children joined Stramongate's Reception class in september 2023. Governing Board and Senior Management investigations
suggest that all families who visit Stramongate are impressed and apply for a place, however, the Office for National Statistics
birth rate in the school catchment area is low with just 42 children eligible for a Reception 2023 start born within the school
catchment area.

90% ofchildren leaving Stramongate Nursery to attend primary schooljoined Stramongate School in september 2023; One
child at Nursery has gone to Sandgate School.

Sublcct

Potcarrtaop
ot pupils

achlcYing at
lG..t th.
cxFctcd
standard:

SElEgnlelr
l2o21l

Parccntaga
o, pupil.
schlaving
!t lcrst lh.
axpoctad
stanaLrd:
nagonelly

l2o2al
SPAG 4196*3596GD 72

Englash
readrng 77 +2g cO 74

Englash
writng 7996 + '|O96GD 72

Mathemahcs 90%*29% GD t3
Sci6nc,e aa96 81Vo
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Trustees' Report (continued)

Finoncidl Peiotmonce

The Governing goard are committed to achieving financial sustainability and offering value for money. Key financial
performance indicators are set annually, based on guidance received from the ESFA and financial advisors, and performance
against these is reviewed termly. Areas offocus include:

Teaching staffcosts as a percentage of total expenditure
Average teacher cost
Teacher contact ratio
Pupil to teacher ratio
Educational support stalf costs as a percentage of total expenditure
Agency staff costs as a percentage of expenditure
Administrative and clerical staff costs as a percentage of total expenditure
Other staff costs as a percentage of total expenditure
Premises costs as a percentage oftotal expenditure
Energy and utilities costs as a percentage oftotal expenditure
ICT costs as a percentate oftotal expenditure and per pupil
Catering staff costs and catering supply costs as a percentage oftotal expenditure and per pupil
Cash inflow/outflow

Going Concern
After making appropriate enquiries, the Governing Board has a reasonable expectation that the academy trust has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

However, the academytrust is transfering the business and schoolto Cumbria Education Trust with an expectation that this
may be in Easter 2025, so within the next 12 months and therefore the academy trust will no longer be a goint concern.
Trustees feel that this move will strengthen finances by providing cost savings through shared servicet leadership capacity and
access to larger reserves if needed.
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Financial Review

Page 11

Financlal Review
The Academy Trust's accounting period is 01 September 2023 to 31 August 2024

The maiority ofthe academy trust's income is obtained from the ESFA in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is

restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the ESFA during the year to 31 August 2024 and the associated

expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities. During the year ended 31 August 2024
expenditure exceeded income on the restricted fund by €68,146, before transfers and actuarial gains.

The academy trust generates additional income through the hire of facilities, sale of meals and other items and running wrap
around care services as well as receiving donations. This income is shown as unrestricted funds in the Statement of Financial

Activities and is used to support the trust's core educational provision as wellas provide pupils with additional educational
opportunlties and experiences. During the year ended 31 August 2024, unrestricted income exceeded expenditure by €38,788,

before transfers.

During the year, the school received total revenue funding of €1,818,593 of which 81.301,015 was from the DfE in the form of
GAG funding (72%). Other signmcant rev€nue funding includes f109,184 from the l-ocal Authority for educational statements.

Revenue expenditure was €1,711,659, of which staffin8 is the main area of cost al87,347,982. (79%l

At 31 August 2024, the net book value of fixed assets was €1,938,583. The fixed assets wer€ used exclusively for providing

education and the associated support services to the pupils of the academy trust.

Reseru€s Policy
tu at 31 August 2024, the Academy Trust had reserves of €2,114085, this comprised of

The Restricted lncome Fund of 58,415. This figure represents the amount of restricted fundint received, including the
General Annual Grant, less the amount spent;

The Restricted Fixed Asset Fund of €1,945,801. This related to capitalised fixed assets, which is the cost ofthe tangible and
intangible assets held by the academy, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment. These funds could only be

realised for use by the Academy through the sale of such assets;

The Restricted Pension Fund of €Nil. This is the pension surplus / deficit relating to the academy trust recognised at the year

end. The academy trust will continue to make pension contributions, as advised by the scheme actuary.

The Unrestricted lncome Fund off109,869. This is the excess of unrestricted income generated by the Academy over
expenditure relating to unrestricted activities.

The Governing Board review the current and proiected level of reserves on an annual basit ensuring that it is adequate for the
continued operation ofthe academy trust, based on current and projected funding levels and educational policies. The current
level of reserves is considered adequate by the coverning Board to meet short-term emergencies; and for cash-flow
management, to ensure employees and suppliers can be paid.

The obiective of the Goveming Board in recent periods has been to achieve a total level of restricted and unrestricted reserves

sufficient to enable the Academy Trust to meet one month's salaries and services costs.
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Trustees' Report (continued)

Funds in Wclt
There were no funds in deficit at the year end

lnvestment Policy
The Governing Board ensures all monies are in the appropriate investment accounts at the bank. These are used to maintain
good cash flow over the year. The Board have a formal investment policy.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Coronovirus (COV\&79)
The longer-term impact of COVID are being felt through the lower outcomes achieved by pupils in formal assessments,
compared to results prior to the pandemic. National Tutoring and Recovery Premium grants, which continued in the 2023/24
academic year, contribute towards some of the costs incurred in relation to closing attainment gaps, however, these do not
cover the full cost of provision and will not be sufficient to address all increased need.

F uctuotions in Pupil Numbc's
The majority ofthe academy trusfs income is obtained from the ESFA in the form of recurrent grants calculated on the basis of
pupil numbers. The key risk to the trust is, therefore, fluctuation in pupil numbers.

The Governing Eoard are monitoring pupil numbeB, and budgets, closely and have taken early actions to ensure that the trust
is able to achieve a balanced budget in future periods. To address and minimise the risks posed from fluctuating pupil numbers,
the Board have agreed to reduce the school's Primary Admission Number (PAN) from September 2025 following a full
consultation with parents and the localadmissions authority.

T.ust estat€ manatement
A Health and Safety audit has been carried out and the school are working through the actions. RAAC survey completed and
none found. Maintenance continues on the site with new lightint in different areas of the school, replacement of external
windows and continuing asbestos removal. Annual tree works continue to ensure externalsite remains safe and ongoing
redecoration projects.

Financial and Risk Management Obiectives and Policies
The academy's exposure to credit cash flow and liquidity risk are minimised by the very nature ofthe trust activities. Grant
funding is received at the beginning of each month, which ensures a positive cash flow throuthout the financial year, due to
student lagged funding this has been closely watched over the year. lncome from other sources, are not a large part of the
trusts income and therefore do not form a significant credit risk, Bank balances are positive and the academy holds cash
reseryes.

It is the Trustees objective to maintain suitable cash reserves whilst expending the grant funding received in that year on the
education ofthe students. The level of reserves is discussed annually.

Principal Funding Sources
The maiority ofthe academy's income is obtained from the Education and skills Funding Agency (ESFA) and the Local Authority
in the form of grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes,

Fundraising

Friends of stramongate School (FOSS), a registered charity which comprises staff, parents and carers of pupils at Stramongate
school, undertake fundraising activities on behalf of the academy trust; these include the sale of tea-towels, cake sales, pupil
discos and a summer fair. These activities are run in conjunction with and oveGeen by the trustees who, following Charities
Commission guidance, ensure compliance with relevant data protection and licensing legislation as well as the protection of the
public and vulnerable people from unreasonably antrusive or persistent fundraising approaches or undue pressure to donate.

The Academy Trust does not, nor have any current plans to, work with any commercial partners or professional fundraisers. All
fundraising undertaken durinS the year was monitored by the Trustees.
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Trustees' Report lcontinuedl

Plans for Future Periods

The academy trust's key objectives continue into the forthcoming year. The key areas being focussed on for development will
be:

. lncrease the reception Good tevel of Development to 75%. lncrease the number of children working at Age Related
Expectations to 75% in KSl and 85% in Ks2, with the expectation of 9096 of Ks2 children achieving Age Related Expectations
by 2030;

. Ensure all identified K support children (sEN with no EHCP) and disadvantaged learners are fully supported to make good
proSress.

. Subject Leaders lead effectively and can articulate subiect strengths and developments.

. To further raise reading and writint standards across all ages.

. lmprove overall school attendance to 97% attendance and peBistence absent rates to less than 1O%.

. Develop an in-school mental health leader.

. Staff have access to prioritised rante of CPD and development time built into 1265 hours and other school procedures.

. StramonSate will begin a longer-term integration into cumbria Education Trust (CED across all areas of school,

The school Development Plan outlines our plans to achieve these objectives (available from the School Office).

The academy trust is currently exploring the possibility of installing an outdoor classroom to improve its outdoor learning
provision. Longer-term plans are also to develop a dance and drama studio in the Hub building and reinvestigate the potential
of a muhi use games area on the field

The Trustees are satisfied with the schoofs objectives and plans for the current year and were involved in setting the s-year
vision. Trustees are aware ofthe commitment of the school in responding to the developing needs of its pupils and staffand
the need to be flexible in this ever-changing educational landscape.

Auditor

lnsofar as the trustees are aware:

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware: and

' the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the auditor is aware ofthat information.

The Trustees' report, incorporating a strate8ic report, was approved by the Trustees and signed on its behalf by

,4Z,.rat
Mrs Victoria Plmblett
Chalr of Trustees

zD h/2* Date
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Governance Statement

Scope of Responsibility
As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Stramongate School has an effective and
appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business obiectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account ofthe guidance in DfE's Academy Trust Governance Guide and this is
included as part of our induction for all new trustees.

The Board ofTrustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Headteacher, as accounting officer, for ensuring
financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with
the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Stramongate School and the S€cretary
of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the board oftrustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns
in internal control. The Board ofTrustees has also appointed a Chief Financial Officer to support the Headteacher in financial
management, financial monitoring and reporting and ensuring all required statutory and DfE returns are prepared and

submitted on time.

Governance
The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the Statement of
Trustees' Responsibilities.

FullGoverninE Board
The board oftrustees has formally met 3 times during the year. Attendance during the year at meetings ofthe board of
trustees was as follows:
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Board of Trustees work, pertomance and chantes in composition
Work ofthe Board ofTrustees included:

. Review and approval of statutory policies;

. A8reement on all constitutional and compliance matters;

. Determinint committee structures; appointing trustees to committees and special functions; review and approval of the

academy trus(s accounts and budgets;
. Performance management of the Headteacher and staff structure and performance overview;
. Ensuring actions required followinS Ofsted inspections are taken;
. lnput into, approve and monitor proBress of the School Oevelopment Plan; and
. Monitor overall standards in terms of outcomes for children's learning and wider experiences across the school.

The Board ofTrustees uses a wide range of third-party data to validate the information supplied by the Headteacher, e.8.

Analyse School Performance (ASP), Fischer Family Trust, independent auditort heahh and safety consultants and a

Headteacher consultant as well as the DfE Schools Financial Benchmarking Tool, lntegrated Curriculum & Financial Planning

using the ISBL Advanced Strategic Optimisation Tool and the DfE School Resource Management Self-Assessment Checklist, The

Governing Board has found information to be timely and accurate, and has questioned as relevant.
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Govemance Statement (continuedl

cn flt.ls o, int",!st
The Board of Trustees is aware of its duty to avoid and manage conflicts of interest

Members and trustees avoid both real and perceived conflicts of interest by adhering to the Code of Conduct, manating their
personal relationships with related parties carefully, not accepting benefits from third parties and conducting themselves with
integrity and openness, declaring any interests in proposed transactions or arrangements.

The Clerk to the Governing Board maintains an up-to-date regirter of business and pecuniary interestt which is shared with all
members and trustees as well as on the Stramongate School website; trustees are asked to complete a declaration prior to
being appointed and re-complete this on an annual basis. Conflicts of interest is also a standing item on each agenda.

where a trustee has a real or perceived conflict of interest, they are asked to withdraw from any discussions or decision
making relating to the proposed transaction or arrangement with which they are conflicted.

Mectlngs
The Board ofTrustees are satisfied that, despite meeting less than 6 times in the year to 31 August 2024, it has met regularly
enough to discharge its responsibility to ensure robust governance and effective management arangements.

The 4 meetings of the Eoard ofTrustees were supplemented by meetings ofthe Planning, Monitoring, Finance Audit and Risk
and Health and Safety Committees, as well as on-site visits conducted by trustees throughout the year.

Retular financial oversight is maintained through these meetints as well as throuth the sharing of monthly management
accounts, termly intemal scrutiny yisits and regular discussions between the Chief Financial Officer and key trustees. The
Board includes membe6 with experience offinancial oversight, includint a qualified accountant who is also a DfE School
Resource Management Advisor.

Gowmonce nevlew
The Eoard ofTrustees performed a self-evaluation of its effectiveness in September 2023, using the National Governance
Association template. The outcomes of this review were positive, with the Board ofTrustees considering itself as operating
effectlvely in all areas, but with some individual governoG identirying opportunities for further development. tn conjunction
with the annual skills audit, also completed September 2023, this was used to direct further trustee training and recruitment.
These reviews will be repeated annually.

Pl on n I ng Su b-Comm tale e

The Planning Committee is a sub-commiftee ofthe main Board ofTrustees, its purpose is to:

' ln conjunction with the Headteacher and Senior Leadership Team, identiry key issues and needs and to ensure their
incorporation in the School Development Plan;

. Oversee and approve the School Development Plan beyond the present financial and academic years;

. Agree any Ofrted Actions at the appropriate time, for approval by the Full Governing Board;

' ldentify and consider external issues affecting the school's long-term strategic development and to take appropriate action.
This may include demographic/staffin8 issues, local development and initiatives from the LA and DfE; and

' Consider the strategic issues conceming budgetary matters beyond the current financial year and to ensure that the school
upholds best value principles.

Attendance at meetings during the year was as follows:
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Governance Statement (continued)

M on ito i n g Su b-Com m ittee
The Monitoring Committee is a sub-committee ofthe main Board ofTrusteet its purpose is to review, monitor, evaluate and
take appropriate action to deliver effective implementation of the School's aims in the cunent financial and academic year.

Attendance at meetings during the year was as follows
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Audit ond Risk Sub-Commiatee

The Finance Audit and Risk Committee is a sub{ommittee of the main Board of Trustees, its purpose is to assist the Governing
Board in meeting its obligations under the Academy Trust Handbool! directing the trust's programme of internal scrutiny and

ensuring that risks are being addressed appropriately through internal scrutiny, and reporting to the Board ofTrustees on the
adequacy ofthe trust's internal controlframewor( including financial and non-financial controls and management of risk.

Attendance at meetings during the year was as follows:
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Heokh ond SoFy Sub4ommiltt€
Visits and meetings take place between operations Manager simone Redhead, the Headteacher and the appointed Health &
Safety Trustee, Stephen Lester, throuthout the year. Visit and meetinS outcomes were then reported to the board by the
Health & Safety Trustee.
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Govemance Statement (continuedl

Rslew of v.lue for Money
As accounting officer, the Headteacher has responsibility tor ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value in the use of
public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal
outcomes, as well as estates safety and management, achieved in retum forthe taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the academy trusfs use of its resources has provided good value for money during each
academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use of
benchmarking data or by using a framework where appropriate. The accounting officer for the academy trust has delivered
improved value for money durint the year by:

Generating additional income through:

' The sale of school meals to pupils by continuing to work with the School Council and responding to feedback from parents
and carers to develop a varied menu of popular, healthy meals options. We have a 3 weekly rotating menu and work with
an external consultant to ensure meals are healthy and balanced, We encourate the KSI children to try a school meal by
holding Eat With Teacher Day in October. This supports our uptake of Universal lnfunt Free School Meals.

' The sale of meals to the families of children attending Stramongate Nursery satisfuing a demand for good quality meals
and benefitting from the associated economies ofscale;

' Lettings of the school site. The School House is rented to a private individual and further opportunities are being sought for
the letting ofthe Hub. We have encouraged extemal lettings which has resulted in increased lettings and therefore income

' UsinS online systems to collect income from parentt including by Direct Debit, to improve cash flow by allowing bills to be
settled outside of the school day and during holidays. Wrap around care processes has now been digitised to enable
greater efficiencies.

' School continues to actively promote its work on Facebook and our reputation remains strong in the community. This
continues to support our pupil numbers throughout the year.

Robustly challenging spendin& to ensure the redudion of duplication and waste and the realisation of any cost savings
available. During the year under review, to this effect, the Trust has:

' Developed a robust system of financial oversitht and governance throuth the continued development of the trusgs
internal scrutiny procedures, including working with an intemal audit function;

' Utilised govemment procurement framework and nationally negotiated deals, including the Energy for Schools framework
operated by Crown CommercialSeryices and the CpC;

. Used public sector procurement organisations (i.e. ypo) for the purchasing of classroom supplies;. Undertaken a number of restricted tender processes in relation to the academy trusfs:
o absence insurance;
o maintenance projects, including ext€mal window replacement;

' Undertaken a detailed review of cost areas such as curriculum subscriptions, paper supplies, janitorial supplies and
professional services.

' Continued using benchmarking tools to review performance and identify further efficiency opportunities; and
' Sought opportunities to work collaboratively with other local schoolt CASBAM, and also shared business manager

arranBements with Appleby School;
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Governance Statement (continuedt

The Purpose of the System of lntemal Control
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level ratherthan to eliminate all risk of failure to
achieve policies, aims and obiectives. lt can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The
system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identifo and prioritise the risks to the achievement of
Academy Trust policies, aims and obiectivet to evaluate the likelihood of those risk being realised and the impact should they
be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has b€en in place in
Stramongate School for the period 01 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report
and fi nancial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The board of trustees has reviewed the key risk to which the academy trust is exposed toSether with the operating, financial
and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of trustees is ofthe view that there is
a formal on-going process for identiryin& evaluating and managing the academy trust's sitnificant risks that has been in place

for the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 and up to the date of approval ofthe annual report and financial
statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of trustees.

The Risk and Control Framewort
The academy trusfs system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management information and administrative
procedures including the segregation of duties and a s.ystem of delegation and accountability. ln particular, it includes:

. Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which are

reviewed and agreed by the board oftrustees;
. Regular reviews by the governing board of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts and of major

purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

. Setting targets to measure financial and other performance and reviewing performance against these on a regular (termly)

basis;
. Clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines; and
. ldentification and management of risks.

ln line with the Academy Trust Handbook, management accounts including income and expenditure account, variation to
budget report, cash flow and balance sheet are produced and shared with all members and governors on a monthly basis.

Updated forecasts of performance to the end of the period, with explanations ofvariances, and spend on ring-fenced items,

including pupil premium and sports premium, are reviewed and reported on the trustees at least termly as is performance

against keyfinancial performance indicators.
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Govemance Statement {continued)

lntemal Scrudny
The board oftrustees has appointed Stephen Lester, a trustee, to carry out a programme of internal checks. This option has

been chosen because Stephen is suitably qualified (ACMA), has direct experience of managing schoolfinances (as a School

Resource Management Advisor) and has a tood working knowledge of the school. Stephen provides intemal audit services to
a number of schools, through SK Consulting Ltd, and is able to advise not only on compliance matte6 but share best practise

by drawing on their experience from other establishments.

The intemal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial and other matters and performing a range of checks on the

academy trust's financial and other systems. ln particular, the checks carried out in the current period included reviews of:

. Review of Finance Manual and Financial Scheme of Delegation.

. Review Management accounts and year end proiections

. Review BFR Budget development - review budget assumptions and budget preparation

. Undertake ICFP analysis on BFR

. Review Reserves Policy

. Review lnvestment Policy

On a termly basit the internal auditor reports to the board of trustees, throuth the audit and risk committee on the operation
ofthe systems of control and on the discharge ofthe board of trustees' financial responsibilities, making recommendations for
the committee to consider.

Annually, the intemal auditor working in conjunction with the Finance, Audit and Risk Committee prepares a summary report
to the Goveming Board outlining the areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the committee
consider actions and assess year on year progress.

Forthe year ending 3l Autust 2024, the intemal auditor has delivered the agreed schedule ofwork; no material control issues

have been identified as a result ofthis work. The Governing Board have taken into consideration all other recommendations
and will ensure that these are implemented going forward, as appropriate.

This option has been chosen because it provides the Trust with clear assurance that its financial and non financial controls
operate effectively and provide the board with clear direction on any areas of weakness detected.
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Governance Statement lcontanued)

ReYiew of Effectiveness
As accounting officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for reviewint the effectiveness of the system of internal control
During the year in question the review has been informed by:

. the work ofthe internal auditor;

. the work of the external auditor;

. the financial management and governance self-assessment process;

. the school resource management self-assessment tool;

' the work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework; and

. correspondence from the ESFA such as the SRMA visit and report and follow up action plan.

The accounting officer has been advised ofthe implications ofthe result oftheir review ofthe system of intemal control by the
Finance, Audit and Risk Committee and a plan to address recommendations and ensure continuous improvement of the
system is in place.

Conclusion
Based on the advice of the finance, audit and risk committee and the accounting officer, the board ofgovernors is ofthe
opinion that the academy trust has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk management and control.

Approved by order ofthe members of the board of trustees and signed on its behalf by:

/Z*u m &ra+r\
Mrr.fitdrffi;rd
Headteacher & fucounting Officer

Mrs Victoria Pimblett
Chair of Trustees

2il rrfuy Date
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As accounting officer ofStramongate School, I have considered my responsibility to notiry the academy trust board of trustees
and the Education and Skills Funding Agencl (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and
conditions of all funding, including for estates safety and management, underthe funding agreement between the academy
trust and the secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration I have had due regard to the requirements of the
Academy Trust Handbook 2023, including responsibilities for estates safety and management.

I confirm that I and the academy trust board of truste€s are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of all funds
by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the aczdemy trusfs funding
agleement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2023.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to date. lf any
instances are identified after the date ofthis statement, these will be notified to the board oftrustees and ESFA.

t\
Mr Matthew
Headteacher
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Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities

The Trustees (who act as trustees of Stramongate School and are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes
of company law) are responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Annual
Accounts Oirection published by the Education and Skills Funding AtencY, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

ComPany law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law, the trustes
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view ofthe state of affairs of
the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for
that period. ln preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Oirection 2023 to 2024
make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subiect to any material departures disclosed and

explained in the financial statements

prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable
company will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keepint adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the charitable

company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable company and

enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets ofthe charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial and other
controls which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They are also responsible

for ensuring grants received from ESFA,/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the
charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kintdom governing the preparation and dissemination offinancial
statements may differ from legislation in other iurisdictions.

Approved by order ofthe members of the board of trustees and signed on its behalf by:

Z/Z*tu.t
M]s Vistorla Pimblett
Chair sf Trustees

2r/a/)e Date
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lndepcndent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of Stramontate School

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements ofthe Stramongate school for the year ended 3l August 2024 which comprise the
statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and notesto the financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is

applicable law and United (ingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 The Financial Reportint Standard applicable in the
UK and Republic of lreland (United KinSdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

ln our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2024 and of its incoming resources
and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

. have b€en properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

. have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006; end

. have been properly prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024

Bais tor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with lnternational Standards on Auditint (UK) (lSAs (U()) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Audito/s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are indep€ndent of the charitable company in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are rele\rant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRCS Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasls of Matter - financlal statements prcpated on a basis other than golng concem

We draw attention to Note 25 to the financial statements which explains that the trustees intend to transfer the school into a
MAT within 12 months and therefore do not consider it to be appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements. Accordingly the financial statements have been prepared on a basis other than going
concern as described in Note 25. Our opinion is not modified in respect ofthis matter.

Other lnfomation

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report including the trustees' report, otherthan the
6nancial statements and our audito/s report thereon. The trustees are rerponsible for the other information contained within
the annual report. lt includes the Reference and Administrative Details, the Report of the Directors and Strategic Report and
the Governance Statement. our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our repoG we do not express any iorm of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledBe obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. lf we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. lf, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement ofthis other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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lndependent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Membe6 of Stramongate school
(continuedl

Opinion on othe. maners prescribed bythe Companies Act ZOOG

ln our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course ofthe audit:

' the information given in the Report of the Trustees for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements; and

. the Report ofthe Trustees has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements

Matters on s,hich we are t€quircd to report by €xception

ln the light ofthe knowledte and understanding ofthe charitable company and its environment obtained in the course ofthe
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Report ofthe Trustees.

We have nothing to report in respect ofthe following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you iL in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit ha\re not been received from branches
not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

. certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement ofTrustees Responsibilities, the trustees (who are also the directoB of the charitable
company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation ofthe financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable to
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company's ability to continue as

a going concern, disclosin& as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting

unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.
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lndep€ndent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of Stramongate School
(continued)

Audito/s responsibillties for tlre audlt of the flnancial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report ofthe lndependent Auditors that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance whh lSAs (UK)

will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis ofthese financial statements.

lrregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with
our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The ext€nt to
which our procedures are capable ofdetecting irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance with laws and retulationt is
detailed below:

' the engagement partner ensured that the engagement team collectiyely had the appropriate competence, capabilities and
skills to identiry or recognise non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

' we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the company through discussions with directors and other
management;

o we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material effect on the financial
statements or the operations ofthe company;

' we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making enquiries of
management and inspectinS legal correspondence; and

' identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly and the team remained alert to
instances of non-compliance throughout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibility ofthe company's financial statements to material misstatement, including obtaining an
understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

' making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their knowledge of actual,
suspected and alleged fraud;

. To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:. performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;. tested joumal entries to identifu unusual transactions;

' assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates set out in the accountlng
policies were indicative of potential bias; and

. investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions.

ln response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed procedures which included,
but were not limited to:

. agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;. reading the minutes of meetings of those charted with governance;

. enquiring of management as to actual and potential lltigation and claims; and

There are inherent limitations in our audit procedures described above. The more removed that laws and regulations are from
financial transactions, the less likely it is that we would become aware of non<ompliance. Auditing standards also limh the
audit procedures required to identify non-compliance with laws and regulations to enquiry of the directoB and other
management and the inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.

Material misstatements that arise due to fraud can be harder to detect than those that arise from error as they may involve
deliberate concealment or collusion.
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lndependent Auditor's Report on the Financial statements to the Members of stramongate school
(continuedI

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors report.

Use ofour report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 15 ofthe
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an audito/s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company and the charitable company's
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Da n Little (Senior Statutory Auditor)

r and on behalf of

Saint & Co

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Audito6
The old Police Station
Church Street
Ambleside
Cumbria
tA22 OBT

l<tt*w" ,ry ?ut. Date
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lndependent Reportint AcGountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Stramontate School and the
Educatlon and Skills Funding Agency

ln accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 2710312024 andfurther to the requirements of the Education
and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024, we have carried out an
engagement to obtain limited assurance about whetherthe expenditure disbursed and income received by Stramongate
School during the period 01 september 2023 to 3l August 2024 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament
and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which tovern them.

ResPectlve Responsibilldes of the Stramongate School's Accounting Officer and tfi€ Reporting Accountant

The accountint officer is responsible, under the requirements of Stramongate SchoolAcademy Trus(s funding agreement with
the Secretary of state for Education dated 01 April 2012 and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 1 September
2023, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by parliament and the
financial transactions conform to the authorities which govem them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance and are to
obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the Academies
Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024. We report to you whether anythint has come to our attention in carrying out our work which
suggens that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 01 September 2023 to 31
Autust 2024 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to
the authorities which govem them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting Accountant
of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA . We performed a limited assurance engatement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and explanations in
order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently does not
enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable
assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the academy
trusfs income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

. the Financial Management & Govemance Evaluation (FMGE) was obtained and considered;

' having a general awareness of regularity and propriety whilst conducting the statutory audit function;. reviewing if extra-contractual severance payments have been made in accordance with the Handbook;

' reviewint if borrowing agreements, including leases to ensure they have been made in accordance with the Handbook;. reviewing the minutes of the meeting ofthe main committees during the year;
. reviewing expenditure to check that it was not ultra vires to the charitable objectives;. obtaining trustee / governors declaration of interests;
. where present obtaining the accounting officer,s file.
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lndependent Reportint Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to stramongate school and the
Education and Skills Funding Agency lcontinued)

Conclusion

ln the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the expenditure
disbursed and income received during the period Ol September 2023 to 31 August 2024 has not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govem them.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to Stramongate School and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work
has been undertaken so that we might state to Stramongate School and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than Stramongate School and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or forthe conclusion we have formed.

-(

rren Little (Reporting Accountant)

For and on behalf of

Saint & Co

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors
The old Police Station
Church Street
Ambleside
Cumbria
LA22 OBT

ls Nwember fuj+ o"t"



Stramongate School

Statement of Fanancial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

(lncludin8 lncome and E Oenditure Accountl

Unrestricted
Funds

Total
2024

Tot.l
20i,3

PagE 29

C

29,921

t,642,962

48,577

26

t,7

1,889,363

36,871

Restrlcted
General

Funds

E

Restrlcted
Fked Asset

Funds
ENote

lncome and endowments trom:
Donations and capital grants
Charitable activities

Funding for the Academy trust's
educational operations

Other trading activities
lnvestments

Total

kpenditure on;

Charitable activities
Academy trust educational operations 8

Other tradint activities

Total

Net income / (ereendlturel

Transfers betue€n funds

3,000 7,214

E

37,224

1,775,466L6a937L

79,091

30

1,692,371 _1 _ _LqZ!E_

2

3

4
5

€

21,@6

26,095

79,O91

30

_-L26222

7

28,756

58,678

6 __-__.91p!_

38,788

10 (8,034)

7,624,225 87,574 L,740,555

58,678

58,146

____91574_ __JJesE_

(80,356) 26,57a

__J,92!&_

(204,808)

8,034

(Xher recognlsed gains and llossesl
Actuarial (losses) / gains on defined
benefit pension schemes

A moYement in funds
124!mo) l.24,000) 272,W

30,754 52,180 (8O,356) 2,578 67,792

Reconciliatlon of funds

Total funds brought forward

Total f unds carried forward

18 79,t15 6,235 2,026,757 2,17!,507 2,U4,375

18 _199Eq9_ _5!.4!5_ J,9{!41_ __ar4pgs_ __2,!!!N_

All ofthe academy's activities derive from continuing operations during the above two financial periods.

23
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Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2024

Fix€d assets
lntangible assets
Tangible assets

2024 2024

1,938,583
1,938,583

6,153
66,337

797,962
270,452

(94,9s0)
775,502

2,7L4,O85

2,7t4,O45

1,945,801

58,415

2,@4,2t6

Mr Matthew rd
Headtcacher & Accountlnt Oftrcei

Pate :10

Company l{umber: 07992t14O

202i 202j3
t€

2,OO9,537

2,0{J9,537

65,735
222,755
288,490

(185,s20)
tot,970

2,ttt,507

2,026,757
6,235

2,O32,392

79,715

-,ltt,fi7_

Note EE

13
t4

Liabilities
Creditors: Amount falling due within one year
Net current assets

Total assets less curent liabilities

Creditors: Amount falling due greater than one year

Provision for liabilities
Defined benefit pension scheme asset / (liability)

Total net assets

Funds ofthe academy trust:
Restricted funds

Fixed asset funds
Restricted income funds
Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Current assets
Stock

Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Unrestricted income ftrnds
Generalfund

Total u nrestricted funds

,/2"**

15
t6

17

23

18
18

t4,23
18

18 109,869 79,Lts
109,869

Total funds 2,t74,O8s

The financial statements were approved by the trustees, and authorised for issue o n .fS-.NAtteltlfu,f.
on their behalf by:

fu/ana signed

h
Mrs Victoria Pimblett
Chalr of Trustees

2,t17,507
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Statement of cash Flows for the Year Ended 3l August 2024

Recondllatlon ot net income / (expendlturel to net cash tlow from operating activities

Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period (as per the statement offinancial
activities)
Adjusted fot:
Depreciation
Amortisation
Capital grants from DfE/ESFA and other capital income
Other government capital grants

Capital donations
lnterest receivable
Defined benefit pension scheme costs less contributions payable
Defined benefit pension scheme net pension finance costs
Decrease/(lncrease)lncrease in stocks
Decrease/(lncrease) in debtors
lncrease/(Decrease) in creditors

Net cadr prodded by / (used lnl OperatlnB Activldes

Cash f,ows from ftnancing actlyhies
Repayments of borrowing
Cash inllows from new borowinB

et cash prflided by / (used lnl financlng activldes

Pate 31

2024 2023

26,578 (204,808)

€f

73,864

17,2781

(30)
(22,000)
(2,mo)
(6,1s3)

(602)

(91,s70)

85,126
668

(77,4631

(25)

13,000
(1s,000)

221,376
(s9444)

Cash flows from investing actlrdd€s
lnterest receivable
Proceeds from sale oftangible fixed assets
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DfE/ESFA and other capital income
Other government capital grants
Capital donations
Net cash provided by / (used lnl invesdn8 activides

Change ln c.sh and cash equlvalents ln the reponlng period

Reconclllation of net cash flow to movement in net funds

Cash and cash equhralenB at 1 S€ptemb€r 20Zl

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period

Cash and €sh equlvahnts at 31 Augun 2024

Analysis of cash and cash equlyalents

Cash in hand and at bank
Total cash and cash equivalents

Analysis o, chantes ln net debt 1 Sept 23

€
222,755Cash

Loans falling due within one year
Loans falling due after more than a year
Total

197,952 222,755

I Sept 23
e.

222,755 24,7931
222,755 (24,7931 197p52

30

(2,910)
7,278

(29,131) 32,429

26

(11,930)
t7,463

4,338 5,559

|.24,7931 37,s88

222,755

|l24,7e31

18/,767

37,988

cash f,ows
E

31 Aug 24
C

197,962

Cash flows

f
124,7931

ew
aSreements

C

O,thet non-
cash changes

f

31 Aug 24

€
t97,962

x247s,5 124,7!Bl L97,952
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year Ended 31 August 2024

1. Stat€ment of Accounting Policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where noted),
iudgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

General lnfomation
The academy trust is a public benefit entity and a private company limited by guarantee, registered in England and Wales
and is an exempt charity. The address of the registered office is Stramongate School, Blackhall Road, Kendal, Cumbria, t-A9
4BT.

The financial statements are prepared in sterlin& which is the functional currency ofthe entity.

Basis of Prepatation
The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRs 102, have been prepared under
the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of
lreland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities
preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the LJK and Republic of treland
(FRS 102) (charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by ESFA the charities Act 2011
and the Companies Act 2005.

The trust meets the definition of a public benefit entiw under FRS 102.

Going Concern
The trustees assess whetherthe use ofgoing concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material uncertainties
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to continue as a going
concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for
issue ofthe financial statements.

The trustees have concluded that the academy trust is not a going concern, therefore the accounts have not been prepared
on the going concern basis. Howeverthe values of assets and liabilities have not been altered as it is believed assets will be
transferred into a MAT at their book value as shown in the financial statements

lncomint Resources
All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is probable and
the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income received for
specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet. Where income is

received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income
and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are
met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is receivable
and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Other government grants are also recognised on a receivable basis. For all Brants the balance of income received for
specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts of
capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recognised when
there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life ofthe asset on which they are expended.

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance.related conditions) where the
receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recotnised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the academy
trust has provided the goods or services.
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otes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 Au8ust 2024 (continued)

1. Statement of Accounting Policles lcontinuedl

Donated goodt facilities and services. Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected
proceeds from sale less the expected costs of sale. lf it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in
stock and 'lncome from other tradint activities'. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against 'lncome from
othertrading activities'and the proceeds are recognised as'lncome from other trading activities'. Where it is

impractical to fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial
statements until they are sold. This income is recognised within 'lncome from other trading activities'.

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to measure this reliably, in
which case the cost ofthe item to the donor should be used. The tain is recognised as income from donations and a
corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic
life in accordance with the academy trustt accounting policies.

Defered lncome
Grants and other funding received forthe academy's educational activities for a period spanning the year end are deferred
pro-rata to the relevant periods in order to match the funding to the period in which the costs of charitable activities are
incurred.

ExFnditure
Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive oblagation to transfer economic benefit to a third party, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefrts will be required in settlement and the amount ofthe obligation can be
measured reliably. Expenditure is classmed by activity. The costs of each activity are made up ofthe total of direct costs
and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertakint each activity. Direct costs attributable to a sintle activity
are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of
resources.

' Charitable Activities - These are costs incurred on the acldemy trust's educational operations, including suppon costs
and costs relating to the governance ofthe academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

. Expenditure on Raising Funds - This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its
charitable purposes and includes costs of all fundraising actlvities events and non-charitable trading,

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

lntandble fixed asrets
lntangible assets costing f750 or more are capitalised and recognised when future economic benefits are probable and the
cost or value of the asset can be measured reliably. lntangible assets are initially recognised at cost and are subsequently
measured at cost net of amortisation and any provision for impairment.

Amortisation is provided on intangible fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line
basis over its expected usefiJl life, as follows:

Purchased computer software - straight line over S years
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year Ended 3l August 2024 (continued)

1. Statement o, Accounting policies (Continuedl

Page :14

Tangible Fixed Assets
Assets are carried at valuation/cost, net ofdepreciation and any provision for impairment

The capitalisation policy of items as tangible fixed assets is as follows

Assets costing f750 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are canied at cost, net of depreciation and any
provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid ofspecific grants, either from the government or from the
private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful economic life.
Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use ofthe asset, the related grants are
credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet.
Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial

Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted fundt depreciation on such assets is charged

to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off the cost of
each asset on a straightline/reducing balance basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings
Building improvements
Fixtures, fittings and equipment
Computer equiPment

Streight line - 0.8% - 2.096

Straight line - 6.6% - 20.0%
Straight line - 10.096 - 20.0%

Strai8ht line - 10.096 - 20.0%

Assets are depreciated in full in the year of purchase

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until they are brought
into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and buildings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is canied out if events or chantes in circumstances indicate that the carryint value

of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of lixed assets and their recoverable

amounts are recognised as impairments. lmpairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Liabilities
Liabilities are recotnised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event it is probable that
a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount ofthe settlement can be estimated reliably.

Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has

received as advanced payments for the toods or services it must provide.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event which

it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate ofthe amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time
value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value ofthose amounts, discounted at the pre-tax

discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recoBnised within interest
payable and similar charges.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

1. Stetemem of Accoundng Pollcies lcontinuedl

Leas€d Assets
Rentals applicable to operating l€ases where substantially all ofthe benefits and risks of ownership remain with the lessor
are charged against profits on a straight line basis over the period ofthe lease.

Flnanclal lnstruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRs 102. The financial assets and financial liabilities
ofthe academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Finonciol ossets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised
con as detailed in the notes. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank- is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value

Finonciol liobilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised
cost as detailed in the notes. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.
Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an
obligation to deliver services ratherthan cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to charvs wholly owned
subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

Stocks
Stock are measured at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell.

Taxation
The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph l schedule 6 ofthe Finance Act 2O1O and therefore it
meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within
categories covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2O1O or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable
Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.
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Notes to the FSnancial statements for the year Ended 31 August 2024 lcontinuedt

1. Statement of Accoundng policl€s (Continuedl

Pension Benefits
Retirement benefits to employees ofthe academy trust are provided by the Teachers' pension scheme (TpS,) and the Local
Government Pension scheme ('[GPS'). These are defined benefit schemes and the assets are held separately from those of
the academy trust.

feache6' Pension Scheme
The TPs is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over employees, working
lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future
pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary based on quadrennial valuations using a
prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between
employers. Consequently, the TPs is treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the
contributions recoBnised in the period to which they relate.

Local Govemment Pension Scheme
The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme, and the assets are held separately from those ofthe academy trust in
separate trustee administered funds. Pension saheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an
actuarial basis using the proiected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a

high-quality corporate bond ofequivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least
triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to net income/(expenditure) are the current
service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as
part of staff costs as incurred, Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of
Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obli&tion and interest income on the scheme

assett calculated by multiplying the fair value ofthe scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return
on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in oth€r recognised gains and losses

Page 35
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Notes to tfte Financial Statements for the Year Endcd 31 August 2024 (continued)

1. St&ment of Accoundng Policies lcontinuedl

Fund Accountlnt
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of
the academy trust at the discretion ofthe trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by funders where
the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted generalfunds comprise grants, including the General Annual Grant (GAG), and otherfunding for educational
purposes and any voluntary income to be used for specific purposes.

The Local Govemment Pension Scheme deficit is recognised against restricted general funds in order to match it against the
GAG, in accordance with Education and Skills Funding Agency guidance.

Details of restricted and unrestricted funds are shown in the notes to the financial statements.

clidcal accountint esdmates and areas of judgement
Estimates and iud8ements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are b€lieved to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critkol occounting estimotes, ossumptions ond judgements
The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates and
assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of factors
that are determined on an actuarial basis usint a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net
cost (income) for penslons include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in the
notes, will impact on the carrying amount ofthe pension liability. Furthermore, a rollforward approach which proiects
resuhs from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the
pensions liability at 31 August 2024. Any differences between the figures derived from the rollforward approach and a
full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount ofthe pension liability.

Furthermore this year the pension asset has been restricted to any surplus of scheme assets over 110% ofthe scheme
liabilities, in line with the schemes funding strategy.

Ihe annual depreciation charge is sensitive to the estimated useful economic lives of property. The useful economic
lives of property, plant and equipment is initially based on the professional valuers report using theiriudgement and
experience. The useful economic lives are assessed annually and chanted when necessary to reflect current thinking
on their remaining lives.
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Notes to the Financial statements for the year Ended 31 Autust 2024 (continued)

2. Donadons and Capital Grants Restricted
FLed Asset

Funds
€

7,21A

Pate :18

Unrestricted
Funds

E

Restricted
Funds

€

Total
2024

f
7,21a

Total
20i,3

f
77,463ESFA - Capital Grant

Other Government - Capitalgrants
Miscellaneous donations

2023 total

3. Funding for Academy's educatlonal operations

DfE/CSFA Grants
General Annual Grant (GAG)

Other DfE/ESFA grants
Pupil premium

UIFSM

Sports Premium
Teachers Pension Grant
Teachers Pay Grant
Schools supplementary Brant
Mainstream schools additional grant
Recovery premium grant
National tutoring programme
Other ESFA Grants

Other DfE Group grants

Other Governnent Grants
LA funded statements
Homes for Ukraine
Other government grants

catering - pupil meal sales
school trips income
school ,und income
Other educatlonal insthutions
Other educational income

2023 total

Unrestricted
Funds

I

Total
2024

e

1,301,015

2t,006
2L,@6

3,000
3,000

24,N6 12,458
7,2ta 31,224 29,921

t2,4SA 77,463

Restdcted
Funds

E

1,301,015

*,o97
40,620
18,550
11,398
22,93A

44,903
8,845
1,445
6,994

90,097
40,620
18,5S0
11,398

22,934

44,903
8,845
t,445
6,994

Total
20i,3

E

L,240,447

79,855
39,609
18,590

7A

27
35,7M
18,710

7,576
7,934

L7,444

1,546,805 1,546,805 1,460,068

109,184
5,370

109,184
5,370

728,544
6,235

500

27,772
26,7

t,248 t,248
4,3234,323 5,290

26,095 L,5a9,171 7,715,456 1,642,962

29,038 I,613,924 I,U2,962

21,772

26,764
23,748
18,573

29,927

114,554 114,554 135,283
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

4. odrer Tr.dlng Activldes

Page 39

Hire offacilities - lettings
Third party catering sales
staff absence insurance claims
Wraparound care income
Other trading activities

20Zl total

5. lnvestment lncome

Unrestrlcted
Funds

E

13,775
4,628
4,866

55,882

79,O91

Restdcted
Funds

e.

Total
2024

t
13,715
4,624
4,866

55,882

Total
2023

c
14,584

5,581

7,926
27,367
5,059

79,091 48,517

4,5r7 44,5D

Unresticted
Funds

E

30

Restdcted
Funds

f

Total
2024

€
30

Total
2023

E

26Bank interest receivable
Other interest receivable

2630 30

20Zt total 26 26
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Notes to the Financial statements for the year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

5. E,e€nditure

Page 40

Staff
Costs

e.

48,404

Total
2024

E

58,678

Total
2023

t
36,A77

on Pay Erpendtture
Premises Olhet Costs

t€
3,555 6,708

136,595
l0{.,671

Cost of other trading activities
Academy's educational operations

Direct costs
Allocated support costs

I,O51,862
247,776

1,188,458

552,O97
7,731,620

755,743199,707
t,299,578 799,707 247,270 1,740,555 1,889,363

1,347,9A2 203,273 247,978 1,799,233 t,926,2U

367,0822023 total

et income/(expenditure) for the perlod lncludes:
Depreciation
Amortisation
(Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets
Operating leases

Fees payable to current auditor

7. cost of (Xher Trading activides

Other lettings
Support staff costs
Rates and water
Heat and light

Wraparound and outreach costs

Support staff costs

Other
catering

2023 total

zo24
E

73,A64

6,97A
6,275
1,850
3,750

2023
C

85,125
668

7,770
5,000
1,150

- audit ofthe financial statements
- other assurance services
- other services

Unrestrlcted
Funds

t

Restricted
Funds

f

Total
2024

f.

Total
2023

€

1,1s9
2,407

1,159

2,407

2,707
3,447

3,556

44,4U
7,Oa?
5,626

3,566 5,548

48,404
r,082
5,526

25,t23
2,289
3,911

55,712 55,112 31,323

s8,678 58,678 35,871

36,877

t,290,249 268,903 L,926,234

36,871
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otes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 3l August 2024 (continuedl

Renrlcted
Funds

E

I,Ost,862
9,904

45,O75

6,445

33,365
39,525
2,287

Total
2024

C

\o57,462
9,904

45,O75
6,445

33,366
39,525
2,281
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Total
202il

e
1,000,664

10,056
50,065
4,99a

34,278
27,408
2,L't

8. CharitableActivlties

Direct Costs - educatlonal operations
Teachlng and educational support staff costs
Depreciation
Educational rupplies
staff development
Examination fees

Technology costs

school trips and residentials
Other direct costs

Support Costs - educational operatlons
Support staff costs
Depreciation
Amortisation
Loss on disposal offixed assets
Maintenance of premises and equipment
Maintenance of premises and equipment - CIF

Cleaning
Rates and water
Heat and light
Refuse, hy8iene and security
lnsurance
Staff lnsurance
Telephone
Admin photocopying and stationery
Educational consultancy
schooluniform
Catering expenses
Professional fees

Other support costs

Support Crsts - govemanc€

Audit fees
Accountancy and assurance fees
Trustees' training and expenses
Legal fees
Professional fees
Net finance costs in respect of delined benefit

pension schemes

Totel direct and support costs

2OZl total

Unrestrlcted
Funds

E

1,188,458 1,188,458 1,133,620

494
28,756

tt,o7t

5,260
11,931

247,776
63,960

8,849
28,430
45,271
5,795
7,265
9,584
6,704
2,433
4,192
5,260

44,O97

12,897
3,794

2 ,462
75,O70

668

68,579
132,45

6,445
24,209
41,463
5,464
7,859
9,878
5,652
4,242
6,467
8,230

41,035
22,671
8,078

236,45
53,960

8,849
2A,430
45,217
s,795
7,265
9,584
6,704
2,433
4,792

28,766
12,497
3,300

503,628

40,797 &,197

532,384 732,917

6,275
7,334

3,O00

5,104
(2,000)

6,275
7,334

3,000
5,104

(2,m0)

5,000
4,750

76

13,000
19,713 19,713 22,426

40,559 7 1,889,353

2a,756 7,711,799 1,740,555 1,889,363
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Notes to the Financial statements forthe year Ended 3l August 2024 (continued)

9. Staff

a. Staff costs and employee benefits

Staff costs during the period were:
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes
Other employee benefits
Other staff costs

Chotitoble Adivities
Management
Teachers

Administration and support

2024
f

7,O20,@9
86,953

215,451

Pate 4ll

2023
t

988,645
4o,226

206,763

325

Supply staff costs
Staff restructuring costs
Staff seconded in / out of the organisation

Staff restructuring costs comprise
Redundancy payments
Severance payments
Other restructuring costs

b. S€verance payments

The academy trust paid no severance payments in the year, disclosed in the following bands
2024

0 - €25,000

€25,001 - €50,000
€5q0o1 - Eloo,o@
€100,001 - €150,000
f150,000+

c. Special staff severance payments - Non statutory/non-contractual staff severance paynrents

lncluded in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments totalling €Nil (2023: €Nil)
lndividually, the payments were fNil. (2023: fNil)

d. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy during the period was as follows:

1,323,013
24,969

7,275,959
74,290

No

2024
o

5

11

32

2023
No

5

11

35
48 51

1,347,942 \290,249
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 3l August 2024 (continuedt

e. Hlgher pak, stafi

The number ofemployees whose employee benefits (excludinB employer pension costs and employer national insurance
contributions) exceeded E60,fi)Owas:

2024 2023

f6O,0OO to €69,999
f70,0O0 to €79,999

t. Key management p€rsonnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management team as listed on
page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions) received by key management
peBonnelfor their services to the academv trust was:

No
I

No
I

1I

Senior leadership team
Staff trustees

2024
E

295,772

20i2i
e.

278,@4
25,474

295,772 303,418
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

10. Transfe6 Between Funds

Restricted general fu nds
General Annual 6rant (GAG)

Music tuition fees transferred to the restricied GAG fund to cover costs incurred in
providing this service
Uniform fund overspend funded by GAG
UISFM surplus moved to GAG to cover overheads
Wraparound care fund surplus moved to GAG to cover overheads
Overspend on unrestricted caterint fund covered by GAG fund
Staff absence insurance income moved to allocated against GAG staff costs

Unive6al lnfant Free School Meals (UIFSM)

UISFM surplus moved to GAG to cover overheads

Restricted fixed asset funds
Fixed assets used for charitable purposes

Purchases from ESFA formula grant
Purchases from GeneralAnnual Grant (6AG)

ESFA formula grant to Fixed assets fund
Fixed asset purchases from ESFA formula grant

Unrestricted Funds

Unrestricted general funds
Uniform fund overspend funded by GAG

Staff absence insurance income moved to allocated against GAG staff costs

Facilities hire fund surplus for the year moved to unrestricted general funds

Wraparound care fund
Wraparound care fund surplus moved to GAG to cover overheads

Unrestricted catering fund
overspend on unrestricted catering fund covered by GAG fund

Unrestricted facilities hire funds
Facilities hire fund surplus for the year moved to unredricted general funds

Page tl4

2024
f

(7,42t1
8,532
5,826

(1,230)

4,865
16,556

(8,s32)

8,034

2,970

1,427
(486s)
10,149

2,gto

(2,9r0)

6,7Lt

(s,826)

1,230

(10,149)

(8,0341
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Mr Matthew Beresford
Remuneration
Employer's pension contributions

Mrs sharron Butler (staff trustee to 14 November 2022)

Remuneration
Employer's pension contributions

Mrs Jenny Mason (staff trustee to 14 November 2022)
Remuneration
Employer's pension contributions
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 3l August 2024 (continuedl

U, Related Party Transactions - Trusteed remun€rati,on and cxpenses

One or more governors has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment with the academy

trust. The principaland other staff trustees only receive remuneration in respect ofservices they provide undertaking the
roles of principal and staff members undertheir contracts of employment.

Other trustees did not receive any payments, other than expenses, from the academy in respect of their role as trustees.

The value of trustees' remuneration and other benefits for the period was as follows

€65,000 to €69,999
€15,O0O to t19,999

(2023: t6O,00O to t54,999)
(2023: €15,000 to f19,999)

(2023: €0 to €4,999)
(2023: €5,0OO to €9,E19)

(2023: €0 to f4,999)
(2023: f5,0OO to €9,999)

During the year ended 31 AuSust 2024, travel and subsistence expenses totalling fNil were reimbursed to no trustees in

respect of their role as a governor (2023: €Nil to no trustees). There are payments made to staff trustees in relation to their
teaching roles which are not disclosed here.

12. Truste€s and ofEcars insuranca

ln accordance with normal commercial practice the academy has purchased insurance to protect tovemors and officers
from claims for negligent acts, errors or omissions occur ng whilst on academy business. The insurance for the year ended
31 August 2024 provides cover up to €10,mo,0m (2023: f10,00O,00O) on any one loss and any one membership year.

The academy's insurance is via the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA) and the cost ofthis
insurance is included in the total insurance cost. lt is not possible to quantiry the trustees and officers indemnity element
from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membeBhip.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year Ended 3l Autust 2024 (continued)

13. lntangible Fixed Assets

Cost
As at 1 September 2023
Additions
Disposals
As at 31 August 2024

Depreciation
As at I September 2023
Charge in year
Disposals
As at 31 August 2024

I{et book values
Ar at 31 Autun 2024

As at 1 September 2023

14. Tangible FLed Assets

Pat€ /l5

TotelComputer
Software

e
L4,438

C

14438

14,43A M,434

74,$a 74,438

14,438 14,43A

Con
As at I September 2023
Additions
Disposals

As at 3l August 2024

Depreciation
As at I September 2023
Charge in year
Disposals
As at 3l August 2024

Net book valu€s
As at 31 August 2024

Long Leasehold
Land & Building

Buildings lmprov€ments
f€

2,329,0@ 330,120

237,200
20,860

2,329,ON 33qU0 161,m2 772,516

Furnhure
Fittln$ &

Equipment
e.

161,002

tcT
Equlpment

€
169,605

2,gto

141,609
9,905

Total

2
2,989,724

2,gt0

2,992,538

448,355
39,272

L53,O27

3,827
980,191
73,864

487,627 258,050 156,854 151,514 1,054055

\441,173 72,OO 4,144 2Un2 L938,s83

As at l September 2023 1,880,645 92,920 7,975 27,997 2,N9,537

Valuation Details
The leasehold land and buildings include a valuation of €2,329,000 made in 2013 by P lvany MRIC5 Registered Valuer, who
is independent ofthe charitable company. The basis ofvaluation for the assets was Existing Use Value using a Depreciated
Replacement Cost approach. This was for the inclusion of the items on conversion to an academy trust.

land and buildlnt transactlons
The academy trusfs transactions relating to land and buildings included the granting of a leasehold on land and buildings
on the main school site to Stramongate Nursery from 1 September 2021, for E5,OOO (plus ansual RPI adjustments) over a
term of 5 years.
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otes to the Fanancial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

15. Stod(

Educational materials
Catering
Uniform

Pete O

202'2024
C

5,803
250
100

e

16. Debto6

Trade debtors
VAT recoverable
Prepayments
Accrued income
Other debtors

17. CrEdito.s: Amounts falllng due withln one yea.

Trade creditors
Taxation and social security
Other creditors
Accruals
Deferred income
ESFA creditors

Detelred lncome

Deferred income includes:
Deferred income at l September 2023
Resources deferred in the year
Amounts released from previous years
Deferred income at 31 AuSust 2024

Deferred income comprises:
Universal lnfants Free School Meals allocation for next year
ESFA grant for rates 1 September 2024 to 31 March 2025
Other income in relation to the next academic year

6,153

2024

7,860
38,ta2
19,382

913

2024
€

24,679

33,548
29,36?
7,360

94,950

2024

E

20i,3
€

800
5,330

35,777
14,794
5,W

66,337 65,735

18O520

20i2ji
f0.

42,254
29,363

42,2s41
29,363 42,254

23,695
4,233
1,435

29,363

t]

20i2i
C

9 905
19,139
23,fi6
83,956
42,254
7,360

25,310
42,254

(2s,310)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

18. Funds Balance at
0l-S€p

20i13

f

6,235

6,235

lncomint
resoulces

1,301,015

90,o97
40,620
18,550

11,398
22,938
44,903
8,845
L,M5
6,994

tog,tu
5,370

Resources
erpended

Gains, Losses

and Transfets
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Balance at
3l-Aug

2024
E

58,41s

26,7
4,248

7,692,377

(1,2s9,166)
(80,336)

(32,088)
(18,550)

(11,398)

122,9381
(44,903)

(8,84s)
(r,44s)
(6,994)

(109,184)
(11,6Os)

(39,s2s)
(1,248)

€

15,566
(9,761)
(8,s32)

L2,761
(3,00o)

f €
Restricted General Funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)

Pupil premium

UIFSM

Sports premium

Schools supplementary grant
Teachers Pension Grant
Teachers Pay Grant
Mainstream schools additional grant
Recovery premium grant
National tutoring programme

Other ESFA Grants
LA funded statements
Homes for Ukraine
Other government trants
Trips and productions

Other restricted income

Restricted Fixed Asset Funds

Fixed assets used for charitable purposes

ESFA formula capital
ESFA condition improvement fund
Other capital donations

(7,6r',8,2251 8,034 58,415

2,OO9,537

15,520 7,2L4
(73,8641

(13,710)
2,gto

(2,e10)

7,21A @7,5741

1,938,583

7,2ta

7,945,8O7

Restricted Pension Reserve Funds

Pension reserve fund
Total Restricted Funds 2p32392 lt,7Lt,7gel (15,966J ?,0,,4,2L5

Unrestrlcted Funds
Wraparound care funds
Catering fund
Facilities hire
6eneralfunds
Total Unrestricted Funds

79,t15

55,882
21,772
13,715
34,853

126,22j2

(5,826)

7,230
(10,149)

6,717
(8,0341

1(x),869
109,qq9

(s0,0s5)
(23,0O2)

(3,s66)
(10,810)

79,t15 18t,4341

Total Funds 2,111,,so7 811 11,799,2131 (24oool

Details oftransfers are shown in Note lO

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary ofState, the academy trust was not subject to a limit on the amount of

GeneralAnnual Grant (GAG) that it could carry forward at 3l August 2024.

2,026,757

24,O@ (24,000)

2,114,@5
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t{otes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued}

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

ceneral annual tlant (GAGI fund
This represents the core funding for the educational activities ofthe school that has been provided to the trust via the

Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA).

Pupll premium fund
This represents funding paid by the DfE to support disadvantaged pupils in their teaching and leaming, with the aim of

improving their attainment and closing the tap with more advantated pupils.

untvefsal intant free school meals (UlFsM! fund
This represents the fundin8 paid by the DfE to provide all children in Reception, Year 1 and Year 2 with free school meals.

Spolts premium ftrnd
This represents the funding paid by the DfE to fund additional and sustained improvements to the quality of PE provision

supplementary trant fund
This represents the ftrnding paid by the DfE to support the costs of the Health and Social Care Levy and wider increasing

costs.

Teachers pay and pencon gt?nts

The teachers' pay grant was provided to support teacher pay awards. The teachers' pension grant was provided to
temporarily support the increase in employers' contributions to the Teachers Pension Scheme from September 2019. These

grants have now come to an end, with the associated funding now being included within the general annual trant.

catch-up premlum, recovery premium and school led tutorint / natlonal tutorlng funds
This represents funding paid by the DfE to support pupils catch up on missed education due to the Coronavirus (cOVlD-19)

Local authority grams

This represents funding from the Local Authority to pay for additional teaching support for children with an Educational

Healthcare Plan (EHcP).

MSAG

This represents additional core funding.

Flxed assets us€d for charftable purposes

The restricted fixed asset fund relates to funding received from the DfE. ESFA and private sectors, as well as invested from
the school's revenue funding, to carry out works of a capital nature as part ofthe school improvement plan.

Devolved tomula capital (DFCI and condttlon inproEment fund lclFl
This represents monies from the ESFA in relation to capital proiects. The DFC is paid annually, with the amount received
being based on pupil numbers. Eligible trusts can apply for additional CIF funds for significant capital projects.

'1



Notes to the Financial statements for the year Ended 31 Autust 2024 (continuedt

Unrestricted funds
unrestricted funds relate to monies received from insurers and donorc, as well as generated by the school through trading
activities such as the sale of meals, operation of a breaHast club and letting of rooms, to carry out works of a revenue
nature.

Funds in Deficit
None

Stramongate School

Comparative lntormation in respect ofthe precedlnt perlod ls as follows:
Balance at lncomlnt

01-5ep tesources
2022

EE
Restricted General Funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 1,24O,4A7
Pupilpremium - 79,865
UIFSM - 39,609
Sports premium - l&590
Schools supplementary grant - 35,744
Teachers Pension Grant - 7g
Teachers Pay Grant - 27
Mainstream schools additionalgrant - 1.a,7]o
Recovery premium grant - 7,576
National tutoring programme - 7,93a
Other ESFA Grants - 11,444
LA funded statements - 1-2a,W
Homes for Ukraine - 6,235
Other government grants - 5OO

Trips and productions - LB,S73
Otherrestricted income

ResourEes

e)eend€d
Galns, tosses
and Transiers

Pate 50

Balance at
31-Aug

2023
2

6,235

E f

.7,242,O7o1
(79,86s)
(53,012)
(19,47s)
(3s,7Ml

(78)

(271
(18,710)

17,s761
(72,77sl

ltt,444l
(128,s48)

(soo)

122,7871

1,583

13,403

885

4,437

4,20A

6,235
Restrlcted Fixed Asset Funds
Fixed assets used for charitable purposes
ESFA formula capital
ESFA condition improvement fund
Other capital donations

2,043,401

t29,tu
23,49?
(6,034)

{8s,794}

(132,40s)

11,930
(6,877)

9,335

2,W,537
16,620

Redricted Penslon Reselve Funds
Pension reserye fund
Total Restricted Funds

2,212,505 77,463 (218,199) 14,388 2,026,157

(274.,00o) 272,W
(1,848,804) 311':Xt4 2,03,2,392

Unreslricted Funds

Wraparound care funds
Catering fund
Facilities hire
Generalfunds
Total Un restricted Fuods

105,810
105,810

26,426
23,744
14,544
25,241

(25,316)
(31,493)

(4,8781

(1,r10)
7,745

(e,706)

(36,233)(1s,7431 79,775
90,039 177,430) (39,304) 79,175

Total Funds 2,944)15 1,72,-,425 1,.,925,23,l 27Z0[o 4LLt,*7

1,673,924 (1,532,60s) 24,s76

2,000
1,938,s05 t,6tt,!t
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

19. Analysisof et Assets BetuEen Funds

Fund balances at 3l Autust 2024 are represented by

109,869 146,005
(87,590)

Restricted
Fixed Ass.t

Funds
E

1,938,583

t4,s7a
(7,360)

Pale 51

Total
Funds

E

r,938,583

270,452
(94,9s0)

Unrestrlcted
Funds

e.

Restrlcted
General

Funds
€

Tangible fixed assets

lntangible assets

Current assets

current liabilities
Pension scheme liability
fot Net Assets

TanSible fixed assets

lntangible assets

Current assets

Current liabilities
Pension scheme liability
fobl l{et Ass€ts

21. Cairitel Commitments

Contracted for, but not provided in the 6nancial statements

1Olr,869 58,4r5

Comparettve intoamatlon in respect of the precedlng perlod is as follows:

Unrestrlcted
Funds

E

Restrlcted
General

Funds
C

79,775 158,876
(152,641)

Restricted
Fixed Asset

Funds

E

2,OO9,537

s0,499
(33,879)

Totel
Funds

€

2,OO9,s37

288,490
(186,s20)

79,Lts 6,A$ 2,O26,L57 2,L11,,fi7

20. Long-tem commltments, lncludint under operatint leases

Operadnt Leases

At the balance sheet date the totalofthe Academy Trusfs future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operatinS

leases was:
2024 20.2t

Assets other than land & buildings € €
Amounts due within one year 5,256 6,027
Amounts due between one and five years 7,886 7,907
Amounts due after five years

73,142 13,928

Land and property leases

The leasehold land and buildings are sublect to a 125-year lease with Cumbria County Council. Ahhough a peppercorn rent
may be demanded, no such rent has been demanded to date.

202r

22. Members' Liability

Each member ofthe charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets ofthe company in the event of it being
wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as may be required,
not exceeding €10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before they cease to be a member.

E

1,945101 2,114085

20iB
C
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year Ended 3l August 2024 (continued)

23. Pension and Similar Oblitations

The academy trust's employees belon8 to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers, pension scheme Entland andwales (TPs) for academic and related staff; and the Local Govemment pension scheme (LGps) for non-teaching staff, which
is managed by Your Pension service (YPs) for cumbria county council. Both are multi-employer defined benefii schemes.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The latest actuarial
valuation ofthe TPs related tothe period ended 3l March 2o2o and ofthe LGPSto the period ended 31 March 2022.

contributions payable to the schemes at 31 August and included in creditors were as follows:

2024

Teachers' Pension Scheme
Local Government Pension Scheme

The total pension costs to the academy during the year ended 31 August and included in staff costs were as follows:

t
2023

E

9,t71
14,639
23,810

Teachers' Pension Scheme
Local Government Pension Scheme
Local Government Pension Scheme deficit recovery
LGPS current service cosvcontributions adjustment

2024
t

744,LAB
83,538
9,625

l22,Wl

20iri
f

720,403
77,335
24,O25

(1s,000)
215,451 206,763

Teachers' Pension Sch€me

lntrod uction
The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory contributory, defined benefit scheme, govemed by the Teachers,
Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academy trusts. All teachers have the option to
opt-out ofthe TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributiont as a percentage of salary -
these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds
provided by Parliament.

Valuation ofthe Teachers' Pension Scheme
The Government Actuary using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial r€view ofthe Tps in accordance
with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury every 4
years. The aim of the review is to ensure scheme costs are recognised and managed appropriately and the review specifies
the level offuture contributions.

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value offuture costt design of benefits and many
other factoB. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2020, The valuation report was
published by the Department for Education on 27 October 2023, with the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, applying a notional
investment return based on 1.7% above the rate of CPl. The key elements of the valuation outcome are:

' Employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of pensionable pay (including a O.O8% administration levy). This is an
increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost control result is such that no change in member benefits is
needed.

. Total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future beneffts) for service to the
effective date of€262,000 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the notional
investments held at the valuation date) ot 8222,2OO mlllion, Eiviog a notional past service deficit of €39,800 million
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 3l August 2024 (continuedl

23. Pensions and Slmlhr ObllFti,ons (cottinucdl

The result ofthis valuation will b€ implqmented from l April 2O24.The next valuation result is due to be implemented from

1 April 2028.

The employe/s pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to f144,188 (2O23t El20,4o3l

A copy ofthe valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The academy trust is

unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan. Accordingly, the academy trust has taken

advantage of the exemption in FRs 102 and has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined

contribution scheme. The academy trust has set out above, the information available on the scheme

Local Gov€mment PenCon Scheme
The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds. The

total contributions made for the year ended 31 August were as follows:
2024 202jt

EE
Employer's contributions 93,263 101,360
Employees' contributions 24,877 23,L4L
Total contributions 118,140 124,501

The atreed contribution rates for future years are 19.2% for employers, and 5.5% to 12.5% for employees depending on
pay bands.

Parliament has agreed, at the request ofthe Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of an

academy trust closure, outstanding Local Govemment Pension Scheme liabilities would be m€t by the Department for
Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the Department for Education reaffirmed
its commitment to the guaEntee, with a parliamentary minute published on GOV.UK.

At the balance sheet date the scheme is in surplus per the actuarial report at the year end.

However, the academy has entered into an aBreement effedive from l April 2023 to make additional contributions in
addition to normal funding levels. lt is anticipated that the payments will be made over 10 years from I April 2023,

including f9,50O for 2023124, E9,aOO in 2024125 and eTO,lOO in 2025126.
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Notes to the Financial statements for the year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

Zl. Pensions and Similar Oblitations (continuedl

Local Govemment Pension Scheme (continued|

The principal actuarial assumptlons are: At 3l Autust
2024

(Surplusl /
Defich

At 31 August
2024

ChanBe

4.3016

2.9@6

5.4@6

2.80%

21.4
23.9

27.4
23.8

22.7
25.6

22.7
25.6

At 31 August
20iri

Orange
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At 31 Autust
20i,B

(28,m0)
29,000
34,000

(33,00o)
29,000

(28,000)

Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase for pensions in payment / inflation
Discount rate for scheme liabilities
lnflation assumption (CPl)

Discount rate + 0.1%
Discount rate - 0.1%
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase
Mortality assumption - l year decrease
CPI rate + 0.1%
cPl rate - 0.1%

4.7Wo

2.7M
5.00%
2.6096

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The assumed
life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

At 3l August At 3l Argust
2024 2023

Retiring todoy
Males
Females

Retiring in 20 yeo6
Males
Females

Sensitivity analysis
The table below, as Produced by Mercer sets out the impact of a small change in assumptions on the defined benefit
obligation, The figures are based on the surplus /deficit in the scheme before any surplus restriction.

(107,00o)
(41,00o)
(34,OOO)

(u3,mo)
(41,0O0)

(107,00o)

(33,mo)
33,0@
40,000

(39,(nO)

33,000
(33,0o0)

(Surplusl /
Mcit

(78,mo)
(21,00o)
(r6,000)
(83,0(x))
(21,m0)
(78,(n0)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 Autust 2024 (continued)

23. Pensions and Slmilar oblitadons lcontinued)

tocal Govcmment Pension Sdreme lcondnu€dl

The academy trusfs share ofthe assets in the scheme were: Fah tralue
at 31 August

2024
e

Equity instruments
Equities

Debt instruments
Gorernment bonds
other bonds

Property
Cash/iquidity
Other
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fai. value
at 31 August

m23
E

7@,oo0 551,m0

286,000 218,(x)O

152,000
43,000

755,mO

135,000
38,000

67L,W

Total Ma*et Value of Ass€ts 1,945,000 1,713,000

Present value of scheme liabilities
Funded

Unfunded
surplus / (deficitl ln the scheme

Surplus restriction
Surplus / (deficit| rccognls€d in thc frnancial st tements

(1,871,mO) (1,663,000)

7400o 50,000
(74m0) (s0,0o0)

Surplus Restrlction
As noted above the actuary has yalued the academy's share ofthe Cumbria LGPS to be a surplus of f7400O (2023:

€50,000), The trust has not recognised this surplus as an asset, as FRS102 states that a surplus can only be recognised to
the extent that it reduces future contributions. The rate of future contributions are set at the triennial reviews ofthe l-GPs,

the last one was at 31 March 2022. ln the supporting valuation reports, this stated that only surpluses over 110% of
liabilities are able to be retumed to scheme participants through reduced future contributions, ln the academy's case the
assets do not exceed 110% of the liabillties, therefore, under the scheme's current funding strategy the academy cannot
reduce its future contributions.

The actual return on the scheme assets in the year was €147,000 (2023: €80,000).

None ofthe fairvalues ofthe assets shown above include any ofthe academy's own financial instruments or any property

occupied by, or other assets used by, the academy.

Amounts lecogniscd in the statement of financial activities

Current service cost (net of employee contributions)
Net interest cost
Administration expenses
Past service (cost)/gain

Gain/(loss) on settlement
Total oper.dng ch.r8e

Othe. r€cognls€d gaim and (lossesl

Remeasurements (liabilities)
Remeasurements (assets)

Surplus restriction movement
Tolal amount recotnlsed ln tfie y)FA - gain / (losrl

2024
E

(68,00o)
6,000

(4,0o0)

20.i23

f
(90,00o)
(10,00o)
(3,00o)

(66,m0) (1o3,mo)

2024
E

(s2,m0)
52,000

(240oo)

202jl
E

450,000
(128,0O0)
(so,0oo)

(24mO) 272,m
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I{otes to the Financial Statements for the year Ended 3l August 2024 lcontinued}

23. Pensions and Similar Oblltadons lcordnuedl

Local Gove.nment Penslon Scheme lcontinued)

Changes in the (surplusl / detrch in the yean

Deficit in scheme at beginning of period
Current service cost
lnterest cost
Employer contributions
Past service (cost)/gain
Actuarial (gain)/oss - Remeasurements
Administration expenses
lnterest income
Plan introductiont benefit changet curtailments and settlements
Deficit / (Surplus) at 31 August 2024

Surplus restriction
Deficit / (Surplus) recotnised in the frnancial statements

Changes in the present value of defin€d benefit oblltations were as follows;

2024
e

(s0,0oo)
58,000
89,000

(90,mo)

4,000
(e5,0o0)
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20i23

e
274,W
90,000
84,fi)O

(10s,00o)

(322,00O)

3,000

174,wl

(74,00o) 50,000)
74,W 50,mo

At beginning of period
Current service cost
lnterest cost
Employee contributions
Past service (con)/gain
Actuarial gain/(loss) - Remeasurements
Benefits / transfers paid
Plan introductions, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements
Benefit obllgation at 31Au8ust 2024

Changes in th€ falr value of A6demy's share of scheme assets:

At beginning of period

lnterest income
Administration expenses
Actuarial gain/(loss) - Remeasurements
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Benefits / transfers paid
Plan introductions, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements
Scheme assets at 31 Autust 2024

2024
E

(1,653,00O)
(58,0O0)
(89,mO)
(2s,000)

(s2,mo)
26,000

450,000
31,mO

2021
2

1,947,W|
(90,0o0)
(84,0O0)
(23,00o)

00o) (1,653,0m)

2024
t

1,713,0O0

95,mO
(4,m0)
52,000
90,000
25,000

(26,m0)

20zt
E

t,673,W
74,000
(3,mo)

(128,0(x))

105,000
23,000

(31,0O0)

1,945,000 1,713,000
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Itotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

24. Related Party Transactions

Owing to the nature ofthe academy trust and composition of its board oftrustees being drawn from local public and
private sector organisationt transactions may take place with organisations in which trustees harre an interest.

Alltransactions involvlng such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements ofthe Academy Trust
Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after I April 2019 and obtaining their approval
where required, and with the aedemy trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to
connected and related party transactions.

The following related party transactions took place in the period of account;

SfamongaG l{ulsery
The headteacher and one trustee of the academy act as two out of three trustees of Stramongate Nursery, a Charitable
lncorporated Organisation.

Stramongate Nursery leases premises from the academy trust in return for a monthly lease rental payment and a share of
nursery profits. Durint the year to 3l August 2024 the academy trust received €67U (2O23t f:6,78y'.l in lease rental
payments. The academy trust also received a profit share in respect of the period to 31 August 2024 of f2OOOO (2023: fnil).

The academy trust also provides meals and other supplies and services to Stramongate Nursery. During the year to 3l
August 2024, the academy trust received €4628 in respect of the provision of meals (2023: f5,581) and a small amount for
the provision of other services

fnil was due ftom Stramongate Nursery to the trust at 3l August 2024.

F l€nds of StranonFte School
The headteacher acts as a trustee of Friends of Stramongate School, a registered charity comprising of parents and
teachers. The charity made donations of f3,000 during the year to 31 Autust 2024 for the purposes of supporting school
trips (2023:f4,138).

25. EEnts after the end of the ,epoilng perlod

The trustees have the intention to move into a Multi Academy Trust within less than a year ofthe financial statements
beint approved, the financial statements are therefore prepared on a basis other than going concem however the values
have been calculated on a toint concem basis since the academy trusfs intention is for the schoolto remain a Boing
concern but will operate under the MultiAcademy Trust.

The academy hopes to join the Cumbria Education Trust within the current academic year.


